ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 29, 2005
3:57 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Gene Therriault, Chair
Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or Charlie Huggi ns

Senat or Bettye Davis

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Kim El ton
COVWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 59

"An Act relating to service as a diplomat in the United States
Foreign Service as an allowable absence from the state for
purposes of eligibility for permanent fund dividends; and
providing for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 132

"An Act relating to conplaints filed wth, investigations,
hearings, and orders of, and the interest rate on awards of the
State Commi ssion for Human Ri ghts; naking conform ng amendnents;
and providing for an effective date.”

MOVED SB 132 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 143

"An Act anending the definition of the term 'state agencies' as
it applies under Executive Oder No. 113; relating to
information systens in the Ilegislative branch and to the
Tel econmuni cations Information Council; and providing for an
effective date."

MOVED CSSB 143( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO 26
"An Act relating to the voting rights of felons."

HEARD AND HELD

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- March 29, 2005



HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 8
Expressing support of Alaska Arny National Guard soldiers
depl oyed wor | dw de.

MOVED HIR 8 QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 59

SHORT TITLE: PFD ALLOMBLE ABSENCE FOR DI PLOVATS
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DYSON

01/ 14/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 14/ 05 (S) STA, FIN
03/ 29/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 132
SHORT TI TLE: HUMAN RI GHTS COVM SSI ON
SPONSCOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

03/ 04/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 04/ 05 (S) STA, JUD

03/ 17/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 17/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 17/ 05 (S) M NUTE( STA)

BILL: SB 143

SHORT TI TLE: STATE | NFO SYSTEM PLAN: LEGQ SLATURE
SPONSCR(s) : STATE AFFAI RS

03/ 16/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 16/ 05 (S) STA

03/ 22/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

03/ 22/ 05 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 22/ 05 (S) M NUTE( STA)

BILL: SB 26

SHORT TI TLE:. FELONS' RI GHT TO VOTE
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 11/ 05 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 12/ 30/ 04

01/ 11/ 05 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 11/ 05 (S) STA, JUD

02/ 16/ 05 (S) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED- REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 05 (S) STA, JUD

03/ 29/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 29, 2005



BILL: HIR 8
SHORT TITLE: SUPPORTI NG ALASKA ARMY NATL. GUARD
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) EYHRAUCH

02/ 02/ 05 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 02/ 05 (H) M.V, STA

02/ 17/ 05 (H M.V AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 17/ 05 (H Moved Qut of Conmttee

02/ 17/ 05 (H) M NUTE( MLV)

02/ 18/ 05 (H M.V RPT 5DP

02/ 18/ 05 (H DP: GRUENBERG, ELKI NS, THOVAS,
DAHLSTROM LYNN

03/ 08/ 05 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 08/ 05 (H Moved Qut of Commttee

03/ 08/ 05 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/ 09/ 05 (H STA RPT 5DP

03/ 09/ 05 (H DP:. GARDNER, GATTO, GRUENBERG ELKI NS,
SEATON

03/ 18/ 05 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)

03/ 18/ 05 (H) VERSION: HIJIR 8

03/ 21/ 05 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/ 21/ 05 (S) STA

03/ 29/ 05 (S) STA AT 3:30 PM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

Senat or Fred Dyson

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor SB 59

Lucky Schultz,

Staff to Senator Dyson

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions on SB 59

Joel Kopp, Dipl omat

U.S. Foreign Service

Mont errey, Mexico

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 59

Darwi n Pet erson

Deputy Legislative Director
O fice of the Governor

Al aska State Capitol

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 29, 2005



Juneau, AK 99801-1182
POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on SB 59 and gave
Adm ni stration view on SB 143

Paul a Hal ey, Executive Director

Al aska State Conm ssion on Human Ri ghts
800 A Street, Suite 204

Anchor age, AK 99501- 3669

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 132

Steve Snmith,

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage Representative
Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 143

Amanda W/ son,

Staff to Senator Davis

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: | ntroduced SSSB 26

Al onzo Patterson JR. ,

Shil oh M ssionary Baptist Church

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SSSB 26

M chael Macl eod-Ball, Executive Director

(ACLY)

P. 0. Box 201844

Anchor age, AK 99820-1844

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in strong support of SSSB 26

Portia Parker, Deputy Conm ssioner

Departnent of Corrections

431 N. Franklin, Suite 400

Juneau, AK 99801

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Rai sed questions regardi ng SSSB 26

Terry Harvey

Staff to Representative Bruce Weyhrauch

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SJR 8 for sponsor

Li eut enant Col onel M ke Bri dges,
Al aska National CGuard
Anchor age, AK

t he

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- March 29, 2005



POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SJR 8
ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR GENE THERRI AULT called the Senate State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 3:57:31 PM Present were Senators
Wagoner, Huggins, Davis and Chair Therriault.

SB 59- PFD ALLOMBLE ABSENCE FOR DI PLOVATS

CHAIR CGENE THERRIAULT announced SB 59 to be wup for
consi derati on.

3:58:17 PM

SENATOR FRED DYSON, sponsor, explained that SB 59 adds dipl omats
serving in the US. Foreign Service to the list of people who
qualify for an allowable absence for purposes of continuing to
receive a Permanent Fund dividend while Iliving outside of
Al aska. Thirty Al askans m ght be serving in this category.

CHAIR THERRI AULT referenced the fiscal note and asked how he
proposed to define and limt "diplomt."

4:00:45 PM

LUCKY SCHULTZ, Staff to Senator Dyson, said it would be a
Foreign Service officer or a specialist on active duty with the
U S. Departnent of State.

CHAI R THERRI AULT questioned whether the definition is currently
in statute or would it be devel oped under regul ation.

MR, SCHULTZ said the proposal is to provide a definition in
either the new or an additional section.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked if the drafter advised that there was no
definition for the term

SCHULTZ answer ed no.

CHAI R THERRI AULT pointed out that legislators frequently receive
requests to include different categories of individuals to the
al |l owabl e absence list and he has a strong view on the issue. He
wasn't sure how the sponsor would prevent a sort of "Christnas
treeing of the idea."

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 29, 2005



SENATOR DYSON acknow edged it's a legitimte concern.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked if these individuals reside in Al aska
when they aren't assigned el sewhere.

SENATOR DYSON said he assunmes that they maintain a voting
address here and use Alaska as a residence of record. Wen not
assigned they return to the state.

4:04: 27 PM

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER said he doesn't object to the bill but
he'd |ike sideboards requiring the funds be placed in a special
account wuntil the individual returns and establishes the fact
that he/she is going to reside in the state.

CHAIR THERRI AULT said that discussion was held for college
students that went out of state for school. The |egal advice was
that if you make the determnation that the individual is
eligible, it's a property right and there is no ability to deny
access.

SENATOR WAGONER responded we should ask the legal mnds to give
us a nethod that will work instead of a reason why it won't.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS asked the sponsor if he is aware of any
i ndi viduals who previously served in the U S. Foreign Service
and now reside in Al aska.

SENATOR DYSON replied he probably does but he couldn't think of
anyone right then.

CHAIR THERRI AULT advised that he wanted to work wth the
sponsor's staff on the definition for "diplomat."

SENATOR DYSON said he understood that a diplonmat was going to
call in from Mexi co.

4:07:49 PM

JOEL KOPP testified that he is a Foreign Service officer working
in Monterrey Mexico. He was born, went to school, and worked in
Al aska before joining the Foreign Service. Up to that tine he
qualified for and received every Permanent Fund dividend that
was i ssued.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 29, 2005



He said he is testifying to comunicate that denying the
Per manent Fund dividend because he and other Alaskans are in
di plomatic service is inconsistent with what appears to be the
values of the PFD program as evidenced by the list of absences
that are all owed.

MIlitary personnel and congressional staffers are apparently
i ncl uded because they have chosen a profession of high service
to the US. that requires absence from the state. He said
di plomats consider it an honor to represent the U. S. governnent
abroad and Al aska should be proud of its residents who have
achieved that profession. Support should be expressed tangibly
by not denying a dividend.

It's inportant to realize that he isn't a resident of another
state. If he's not an Al askan then he's statel ess because if
Al aska doesn't treat him as a resident there is certainly no
ot her state that would do so.

The argunent put forth that diplomats shoul d be excluded because
they don't need the noney is unsustainable. The PFD program has
al ways been about equal treatnent for Alaskans. It doesn't
matt er how nmuch noney you have or don't have.

Anot her argunent is that if the program is open to Foreign
Service personnel it would open the door for other groups. His
response is that there nmay or may not be other groups that
shoul d be included in the PFD program Ofering that as a reason
is a red herring, he said. Each group should be evaluated on
merit.

Al aska Foreign Service personnel are a small group that has
little political power. However, they serve and represent Al aska
in a way that woul d make Al aska proud.

He thanked Senat or Dyson for sponsoring the bill

4:13.48 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked if he was hired directly out of Al aska.

MR. KOPP said yes, the State Departnment paid for his nove from
Kenai .

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked if his tour of duty that has a definite

end date after which he would be required to nove back to the
u. S

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- March 29, 2005



MR. KOPP explained that when you're in the Foreign Service your
tour of duty is either in a foreign country or in Washi ngton DC.
Tours always have a definite tinme and between tours the dipl omat
is allowed hone-leave and by congressional |aw you must return
to your hone. He said he would be back in Alaska this com ng
sumer .

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked if his next tour of duty would be in
Washi ngt on DC

MR, KOPP said it would, but there is no standard regardi ng where
you woul d go.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked if his famly was with him
MR. KOPP answered yes, he's married with three sons.

SENATOR CHARLIE HUGE NS asked when he joined the Foreign
Servi ce.

JCEL replied his hiring date was 2002.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if there was any doubt when he joined
about whet her or not he woul d recei ve the Per manent Fund.

MR. KOPP said, "I wanted to be denied the dividend just to have
that as the listed reason as the refusal...” He said he
continued to apply and then once he noved over seas he was
deni ed.

SENATOR HUGA NS said then when you left Al aska you understood
you woul dn't receive the dividend.

MR. KOPP replied he realized that was al nost a certainty.

SENATOR DYSON said his argunent for sponsoring the bill is that
a condition of the job nakes it difficult to inpossible to
return to the state every 180 days to nmaintain the
qualification. He asked if that is true.

MR. KOPP agreed it is virtually inpossible.

4:18:16 PM

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER asked how military personnel are treated.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 29, 2005



CHAIR THERRI AULT stated that mlitary service is an allowable
absence.

SENATOR WAGONER asked if there weren't sideboards limting the
nunber of years.

CHAIR THERRI AULT replied they nust remain in active duty and
after a certain nunber of years the requirenment becones nore
difficult.

SENATOR WAGONER suggested reviewing the requirenents because
there is a parallel. Both entail reassignnments away from hone
base.

SENATOR DYSON said that's what we're anmending. He directed
attention to item 3 at the bottom of page 1 and the top of page
2, the additions in the old Section 14, and the renunbered
Section 15.

MR. KOPP agreed there are a lot of parallels between the
mlitary and di pl omatic service.

4:20: 26 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS suggested there are differences. He asked M.
Kopp if he carries a weapon.

MR. KOPP answer ed no.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asserted t he di fferences out wei gh t he
simlarities.

4:21:18 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT announced he woul d hold SB 59.

SB 132- HUVAN RI GHTS COWM SSI ON

4:22:01 PM

CHAIR CGENE THERRIAULT announced SB 132 to be up for
consi derati on.

DARW N PETERSON, Deputy Legislative Drector, Ofice of the

Governor, said the previous hearing ended with discussion on
Section 4, which the Human Rights Commi ssion did not support.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 29, 2005



The Adm nistration's position is that Section 4 is a legitimte
provision in the |egislation.

He pointed out that the bill says that the conm ssion may use
its discretion to review the executive director's order of
dismssal. By regulation the conmssion used to do that. They
st opped because they agreed with the executive director nost of
the tine.

The Admi nistration does not intend to require the commssion to
review all the appeals or dismssals by the executive director
However, the conm ssion should have the authority to supervise
its own staff and if it happens to disagree, it could review
that dismssal by the executive director. If the conm ssion
doesn't have that authority there really isn't any need for a
commi ssion. The executive director could do all the work.

The | anguage was drafted to give the conm ssion flexibility. The
Adm ni stration is open to suggestion, he said.

4.24:18 PM
CHAI R THERRI AULT verified the |anguage i s perm ssive.
MR. PETERSON answered yes.

PAULA HALEY, Executive Director, Human Rights Conmmi ssion

participated via teleconference to say she was available to
answer questions. Comm ssioner G ace Merkes had intended to be
avai l abl e, but was attending a funeral.

CHAIR THERRI AULT said he is baffled why the comm ssion would
oppose the perm ssive | anguage in Section 4.

M5. HALEY replied her wunderstanding is that the concept of
review isn't the concern. The commi ssion repealed the regul ation
allowi ng review because of dw ndling resources. She understood
Chair Fitzpatrick to say that the concern relates to putting
into statute what was previously in regulation because that
essentially creates a right. The reality is that people wll
apply for reviews and that would cost the comission a
consi derabl e amount of tine and effort.

The Al aska Suprenme Court has ruled that when review is nade
avai l abl e before the Human Right's Comm ssion, a conpl ai nant who
believes that the staff has nmade a decision error has a right to
request the conplaint file in its entirety in order to craft a

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- March 29, 2005



request for review. This entails making a copy of the file and
redacti ng any docunents that would not be discl osed.

Furthernore, if a conplainant or a conplainant's attorney crafts
a request for review the conm ssioners feel they would need
| egal assistance in sorting sonme of the nore chall enging issues.

The commi ssion respects the Governor's point of view that it
could be a discretionary review, but the conm ssioners have
clearly said that they would need to review the requests to know
whet her or not to grant the request.

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER agreed that it's a matter of redundancy
and could be a waste of resources. However, if that could be
avoi ded he woul d have no problemw th the provision.

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked her to respond to the assertion that
wi thout the discretion to review there isn't anything left for
t he conm ssion to do.

M5. HALEY said the commssioners' nost inportant role and
function is their quasi-judicial role. Wen the staff finds
substanti al evidence of discrimnation, which warrants noving to
the next stage of investigation, there is a public hearing. The
commi ssioners render the ultinate decision following that public
hearing. The comm ssioners are the judges and the staff presents
the case with the conplainant and/or an attorney on the other
si de.

The conm ssioners also have general oversight of the agency.
Because of the agencies unique role in governnent they direct
the activities ranging from regul ation change to general policy
decisions. Typically it is the commssioners who articulate
positions on | egislation.

4:32:38 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT cal l ed on Ms. DeYoung on tel econference.

JAN DeYOUNG  Assistant Attorney General, Departnent of Law
(DAL), said she would give sone background on the |anguage and
why it was added.

The proposed subsection (a) in Section 4 in AS 18.80.112 is

i ncl uded because the law is silent on what happens in the event
of a finding of no substantial evidence in support of the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- March 29, 2005



conplaint of discrimnation by the assigned investigator. The
subj ect was addressed in regulation but not in statute.

Subsection (a) does the obvious; if there is no substantial
evidence of unlawful discrimnation the executive director
dism sses the conplaint. As Ms. Haley stated, the chairperson
formerly had the power to review decisions. That regulation was
repeal ed because the conmm ssion apparently believed it did not
want to exercise that authority.

The idea was not to preclude review or to conpel a procedure. It
was to provide the conm ssion discretion. By having the statute
drafted this way a future commssion could adopt a review
procedure if it chose to do so.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked how she would respond to the issue that
to decide not to review would entail going through a process
that woul d expend tinme and resources.

MS. DeYOUNG responded, "There's nothing to conpel the conm ssion
to undertake the expense of the review" It could adopt a
regulation to that effect. The intent was not to change the |aw
it was to address a silence in the | aw.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked if it would operate in the sanme way as an
appeal to the court system An individual could appeal a
decision, but the request could be turned down wthout any
reason.

MS. DeYOUNG said it would be simlar to what is referred to as a
petition to review and the court could decide in a summary
fashion to not take up the case.

4:37:47 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT ascertained there was no further testinony and
cl osed the public hearing. He nentioned two zero fiscal notes.

SENATOR WAGONER stated that he talked to Conm ssioner G ace
Merkes and she told him that the commissioners feel that
addi tional funds would be necessary if the provision in Section
4 were included. He recomended that the Finance Conmttee
review the provision closely.

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked M. Peterson if he had discussed the
potential fiscal inpact with the comm ssion.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- March 29, 2005



MR. PETERSON replied the Human Rights Comm ssion submitted a
request for funds because of Section 4. The Ofice of Managenent
and Budget disagreed because the Administration testified that
the intent with Section 4 is that it would be permssive and
open. He said, "The commssion is able to adopt regulations to
not conduct those reviews. |If they do then the Governor's Ofice
can take care of any additional funds that they would need
t hrough the nornmal budget process. ... In FY 07."

4:40: 16 PM

SENATOR WAGONER notioned to report SB 132 from conmttee wth
i ndi vi dual recomrendati ons and attached fi scal notes.

Seeing no objection, Chair Therriault announced SB 132 woul d be
forwarded to the Senate Judiciary Conmttee.

SB 143- STATE | NFO SYSTEM PLAN: LEG SLATURE

4:40: 48 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT announced SB 143 to be up for consideration. He
i nfornmed nenbers that an anendnment was adopted during the first
hearing on SB 143 and discussion took place regarding whether
the University of Alaska should be renoved along with the
Legi sl ature.

He reported that Pete Kelly gave two reasons why the university
should be taken out of Departnent of Adm nistration |IT system
First, the university deals with super conputers and IT that is
out of the ordinary. Second, as an educational institution,
hardware and software manufacturers frequently approach the
university with special deals. He asked M. Smth to respond.

STEVE SM TH, University of Al aska Anchorage, related that as a
public educational system the wuniversity receives special
pricing on software, hardware, applications and sonetines
t el econmuni cat i ons.

The university uses an Oacle database system behind the core
applications and Oacle gives the wuniversity an educational
price for that. Simlarly, the university uses the Mcrosoft
desktop utility and it receives special educational pricing. Sun
hardware is used in research and a distinct price advantage is
gi ven. About 40 percent of the conmputers on the Fairbanks canpus
are Apple and the university receives special pricing for those.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- March 29, 2005



In addition to the special pricing, the university uses
applications that are specific to the university. For instance
the student information-system application is specific for
university wuse. It keeps track of student transcripts and
records and to make sure the university adheres to FERPA |aws
relating to student privacy. In addition the university uses a
course managenent system that is specific to higher education

The application makes it possible for instructors to put course
i nformation on-1ine.

Furthernore there are needs that are specific, special, and
unique to a university system such as research and instruction

Wth the high-performance conputing and networking, specifically
with the superconputer in Fairbanks but also wth other
departnments, there are specific needs for databases or systens
used to collect and anal yze data for research. This, he said, is
tied closely to instruction. Exanples of that are the Cl SCO
acadenm es that are run through a nunber of the canmpuses to train
students on networking. There are specific separate setups to be
able to do that kind of training. For research and instruction
to be cutting-edge the university nust use a variety of systens.

MR SMTH said while they adhere to university w de standards,
flexibility is needed to neet research and instructiona
demands. For exanple, the university partners wth other
universities to work on Internet 1I, which is the next
generation Internet. Internet Il has set standards that the
university nust adhere to so that the researchers can
col l aborate. Students also have access to that. Those standards
may not be the sanme as those used within state governnent, but
those are the standards that work for the university.

Certain contributions and partnerships are nmade specifically for
use by the university. Contributions have cone from Al aska Fi ber
Star and GCl and other carriers with the specific criterion that
it only be used for education and research. Partnerships wth
other wuniversities and research entities are not unconmon so
applications need to be in line wth other education and
research institutions.

"W would like you to consider that the wuniversity my have
simlar consideration to the judicial and |egislative branches,™
he said. In closing he said the university adheres to standards
and works to coordinate, collaborate and share wth state
agenci es whenever possi bl e.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- March 29, 2005



4:49: 37 PM

CHAIR THERRI AULT noted that the Board of Regents is
constitutionally charged with setting policy for the university
system He questioned whether it had established an overall IT
policy for the university.

MR. SM TH answered yes and he is the chief IT officer. That is a
defined officer in university policy and it describes his areas
of responsibility and his duties. New policy was instituted at
the last board neeting to include |anguage to require all IT
investnments to be reviewed through his office. Finally, the nost
extensive l|anguage in policy relates to wuser rights and
expect ati ons.

SENATOR WAGONER asked what kind of tinme constraint his office
pl aces on itself when it reviews IT requests for change or new
equi pnent .

MR SMTH replied the actual policy |anguage doesn't describe
how it would be done and all the procedures aren't in place
since this was just passed at the last board neeting. However
in practice it would be coordinated with the procurenent offices
at each main campus. Wth the delegation it means that at
appropriate places those practices and the review process wil
be reviewed, but if sonething doesn't look right the central
of fi ce woul d becone invol ved.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked M. Peterson if he could offer an opinion
fromthe Adm nistration.

MR. PETERSON replied the Adm nistration has no problem with the
university being exenpt from the definition of state agency. He
added, "Any other agency of the state though we would like to
have a di scussion about that. Only because there is an interna
process within the Adm nistration for that to occur."”

CHAI R THERRI AULT noved conceptual AMENDVENT 2 to include the
university in the list of exenpt agencies. There being no
obj ecti on, conceptual AMENDMENT 2 passed.

There were no further questions or testinony. He noted the zero
fiscal note and asked Senator \Wagoner for a notion.

SENATOR WAGONER notioned to report CSSB 143(STA) and attached
zero fiscal note fromcommttee with individual recomendati ons.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -15- March 29, 2005



CHAIR THERRI AULT announced that w thout objection, it was so
or der ed.

SSSB  26- FELONS' RI GHT TO VOTE

CHAIR GENE THERRIAULT announced SSSB 26 to be up for
consi derati on.

4:55:27 PM

AVMANDA W LSON, Staff to Senator Davis, explained that SSSB 26
addresses Al aska voting laws. The Alaska State Constitution has
a provision that a person who is convicted of a felony of noral
turpitude loses the right to vote until his/her civil rights are
restored. Under statute a person's civil rights are restored
upon unconditional discharge. Unconditional discharge is defined
in statute as being discharged from probation or parole
provi sions after having served the sentence.

The problem associated wth this is denonstrated in the exanple
of a person who is convicted of a felony of noral turpitude and
receives a six-nonths sentence. After 6-nonths incarceration
conmes probation and that can extend for a decade. The probation
period is not necessarily in line with what the judge thought
t he sentence shoul d be, she said.

While on probation the person pays taxes, naintains enploynent,
and perhaps raises a famly, but he/she nay not vote. SSSB 26
proposes to change the law to state that once a person is
rel eased from incarceration, he/she would have the right to
vote. This changes no other rights or obligations, but it brings
the person back into society in a neaningful way. Furthernore,
studies have shown a person who votes is nmuch less likely to
recidivate than a person who doesn't vote.

She suggested that the process wuld be rehabilitative to
participate in the community and public process of voting. To
bol ster that point she read from President Bush's 2002 State of
t he Uni on Address as foll ows:

This year sone 600,000 inmates will be released from

prison back into society. W know from | ong experience

that if they can't find work or home or help they are

much nore likely commt crine and return to prison.

Anerica is the land of a second chance and when the

gates of the prison open the path ahead should lead to

a better life.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- March 29, 2005



M5. WLSON said that although Al aska Natives make up just 15.6%
of the population, fully 37.4% of the disenfranchi sed popul ation
is Alaska Native. Simlarly, African American's nake up 3.5% of
Al aska's popul ati on, but account for 8.2%  of t he
di senfranchi sed. She said these nunbers indicate a greater
i npact on the mnority community.

"Fel ony di senfranchi senent is the [ast maj or form of
di senfranchi senent," she said. However, in the |ast seven years
a nunber of states have addressed this issue and two have
renoved felony disenfranchi senents altogether. The American Bar
Associ ation and the National Association of Mayors have endorsed
this concept and she urged the commttee to do the sane.

5:00: 14 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT referenced the sponsor statenent and noted that
Al aska isn't out of step with the majority of states. Fully 21
states have the same provision and 14 states have permanent
di senfranchi senent .

SENATOR DAVI S acknow edged that Alaska is in the m ddle.

SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER conmented he doubts that when an
i ndi vidual commits a felony that he/she thinks about |osing the
right to vote. He suggested it is a consequence of the action
and he doesn't understand why the commttee would worry about
that. Furthernore he wasn't sure how many would exercise the
right.

CHAI R THERRI AULT said a nunber of considerations go into setting
the jail tinme and length of parole and he didn't believe it was
fair to say that the judge thought the person should serve just
6-nmonths and all rights should be restored at the end of the 6-
nonth period. The Legislature may have made the policy call that
the sentence should be 5-years and the judge could mtigate that
by giving part of the sentence as parole.

SENATOR DAVIS responded the Legislature did make that policy
call and that's why she introduced the bill. "It's time for us
to look at it again,” she said. Just because soneone didn't
think about losing the right to vote when commtting a crine
doesn't nean that he/she wouldn't exercise the right if it were
gi ven.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- March 29, 2005



SENATOR WAGONER said he thought if a person was convicted and
did 9 nonths in jail he/she would be on parole in his/her own
comunity.

CHAI R THERRI AULT said Portia Parker could address the particul ar
questi ons.

SENATOR CHARLIE HUGGE NS assuned the mmjority of the people in
the popul ati on under discussion probably weren't registered to
vote prior to commtting the felony.

M5. WLSON replied 4,643 Al askans were registered to vote and
| ost the right as a result of a felony conviction.

SENATOR HUGGE NS responded, "The question is whether they voted
or not." He further assuned that for a felon, being able to vote
is not an inportant thing in his/her life.

M5. WLSON replied she hadn't done that poll, but if it's
inportant to a few it should be inportant. It's a part of the
rehabilitative process and sone people often don't realize that
they lost the right to vote until they're released fromprison

SENATOR WAGONER cl arified he said that the parole period is part
of the sentence. Losing the right to vote isn't part of the
sentence but with the parole period cones the |loss of the right
to vote.

CHAI R THERRI AULT said if 4,600 people were previously registered
to vote and had lost that right then passing this bill would
give the right to vote to a nuch | arger group.

M5. WLSON replied just the people who are on parole or
probati on woul d be re-enfranchi sed.

CHAIR THERRI AULT said those people who are out on parole and
weren't previously registered to vote would have the right to
vote if this were to pass.

M5. WLSON said yes.

SENATOR HUGGE NS remarked there are several things, such as
voting, that you do for your country. He elaborated, "The other
would be to go to Iraqg or Afghanistan to defend your country.
The sanme people we're talking about here would not neet the
prerequisite to go to Afghanistan or Iraq." He asked Senator
Davi s whet her she woul d agree with that statenent.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 29, 2005



SENATOR DAVI S responded she didn't necessarily agree because she
didn't know the qualifications, but sonme convicted felons do
serve in the mlitary.

SENATOR HUGEA NS said it would require a waiver and his point is
t hat when you becone a felon, there are things such as voting or
going to defend your country that you sinply cannot do. However,
he said, "I think you could probably make a case that it m ght
be as good a thing as anything for recidivismif they could go
tolraqg..."

SENATOR DAVIS stated the intent of SB 26 is to give people the
right and opportunity to vote if they want to exercise that
right. The idea certainly isn't that you have to go to Irag to
get the right to vote back. "That's not what we're concerned
about and neither should you be concerned about that," she
decl ared. Once you've served your tinme you should get back the
right to vote.

SENATOR HUGGE NS clarified his point that felons are precluded
fromservice to country wi thout a waiver

5:12:43 PM

CHAIR THERRI AULT remarked there is a right to vote in this
country as long as you keep the conpact with society. Commtting
a felony breaks that conpact, which is why the freedom of
novenent is revoked. The right to vote is the sane. You can be
i ncarcerated and serving your sentence isn't limted to the tine
spent behind bars. He said he would like Ms. Parker to clarify
whether or not it's possible to commt a felony in Al aska and
have no jail tine. If you serve no jail tinme and didn't |ose the
right to vote, "I'm not sure ny constituents are ready for
people commtting felonies and paying no price," he said.

SENATOR DAVI S asked if the people in his district appreciate the
fact that you mght commt a felony and not serve any tine at
all. It still happens, she said.

CHAI R THERRI AULT agreed that you mght maintain the right to
nove around but you'd |ost your right to vote.

SENATOR DAVI S responded, "That's what I'mtrying to correct.”

M5. WLSON clarified the technical point that sonme convicted
felons serve jail time and don't lose the right to vote. It's

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- March 29, 2005



only those convicted of felonies of noral turpitude that |ose
the right to vote. She said the list of those crines is |isted
in the bill packet.

CHAI R THERRI AULT opened public testinony.
5:15: 04 PM

ALONZO PATTERSON JR., representing the Shiloh M ssionary Bapti st
Church, the Anmerican National and Al askan Baptist Churches, the
| nt erdenom national Mnisterial Alliance, the Martin Luther King
Foundation of Al aska, and fornmer nenber of the Al aska State
Parol e Board spoke via tel econference. He reported that he also
served 12 years as chair of the Al aska State Parol e Board.

He spoke in strong support of SB 26 and enphasized that
sentencing disparity and errors do occur. He further said:

Certainly when one goes to jail a price nust be paid.
However, please keep in mnd, part of the paid
programming in the institution is rehabilitation. |If
rehabilitation is not a high consideration for us then
what i1s? If you take away the hope of an individual in
jail, to cone out and do better, then you encourage
re-incarceration of t hat per son or conti nued
recidivismof that person in the institution.

He urged the conmittee to pass SB 26. Gve them sonething to
reach for, he said.

5:22:49 PM

M CHAEL MACLEOD- BALL Executive Director, Al aska Cvil Liberties
Union (ACLU), spoke in strong support of SB 26 and drew
attention to the letter he wote to Senator Davis.

Since the md 1980s the ACLU has supported the right of any
i ndi vi dual convicted of any offense to vote. Prisoners should be
able to express their beliefs freely except when the state can
denonstrate a conpelling interest in limting that expression.
"In our view, no conpelling state interest can justify barring a
prisoner from expressing his or her belief in the form of
casting a secret ballot in a popular election.”

If rehabilitation is a nost inportant goal for the penal system

what could be nore inportant than ensuring successful reentry
into society, he asked. Establishing a conprehensive set of

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 29, 2005



connections between the offender and the community in which he
or she resides advances successful reintegration. Convicted
felons who reenter the conmunity on parole or serve on probation
face overwhel m ng odds against successful reintegration yet we
expect them to face challenges in the sanme way as a non-
offender. "If that's our demand, we ought to act by the sane
standard and give the released offender the opportunity to
exercise his or her rights as a functioning nenber of society if
in fact they have been rel eased into society."

Ref erenci ng NAACP vs. Harvey he said that experts found that
there is no rational purpose in denying the vote to parol ees and
probationers. Furthernore,
Denying suffrage to them in fact, contradicts the
purpose of rehabilitating offenders. Voting is a
positive and re-integrative event that connects the
of f ender to hi s or her comunity and
di senfranchi senent laws frustrate offenders in their
attenpts to reenter society fully and successfully.
D senfranchi senent hinders the rehabilitative purposes
of parole and probation by denying to parolees and
probationers the rights and responsibilities of
citizenship and participation in comunity Ilife
necessary to rehabilitation.

MR. MACLECOD- BALL said his letter to Senator Davis cited a study
in Mnneapolis that found a strong correlation between voting
and recidivism It showed that voters are about half as likely
to be rearrested as non-voters. This study supports logic, he
said. Since voting is a pro-social endeavor, it has the effect
of weaving the offender back into the community. Furthernore,
since the purposes of probation and parole are rehabilitative
rat her than punitive, SB 26 makes particul ar sense.

In passing this bill, Alaska wll join a novenent of states that
are recognizing that there is no practical reason for arbitrary
restrictions on voting rights. In fact, the Anerican Bar

Associ ation has taken a position that matches this bill

"SB 26 offers you the opportunity to work for positive change in
advancing the ideals of our nation and the ACLU strongly urges
enactnent of the bill,"” he concl uded.

5:29:15 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked Ms. Parker to cone forward.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- March 29, 2005



PORTI A PARKER, Deputy Comm ssioner, Departnent of Corrections
(DOC), reported that the departnment has taken no position on the
bill, but it does have several concerns regarding inplenentation
and cost.

One issue is the definition of incarceration or incarcerated. A
nunber of offenders are receiving credit for being incarcerated
when serving in hal fway houses, under electronic nonitor, and in
treatnment beds. These individuals are in the community but they
are incarcerated; they are in prison.

The other issue is the confusion between probation and parole. A
judge gives probation. |If an offender receives a 12-year
sentence with 3 years suspended, 9 years would be served and the
3 years would be probationary upon rel ease. However, because of
mandatory parole the offender would get out after 6 years. Sone
of that tine could be served in a hal fway house. Follow ng the 6
years, the offender is on probation for 3 years and parole for 3
years. In Alaska they run concurrently so supervision is for
just 3 years.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked i f t he of f ender is rel eased
unconditionally after 9 years.

MS. PARKER said that's correct; they would receive unconditiona
rel ease and their voting rights would be restored.

Since Peratrovitch, the Departnment of Corrections can no | onger
restrict an offender from returning hone if he/she is on a
waiting list for treatnent. "Wether it's alcohol treatnent or
sex offender treatnent, we cannot - as probation and parole -
keep them from going back to their honmetown as they're waiting
to get into a treatnent facility or to other services. That was
a 2002 case in Peratrovitch."

Anot her concern is the cost and logistics of letting the
D vision of Elections know because violation occurs between 30
and 50 percent of the time. Typically, parole violations and/or
revocations occur within the first year and it's not uncomon
for violation to occur within the first nonth. Certainly this
woul d increase the workload for the departnment and the Division
of El ecti ons.

5:34:53 PM

CHAI R THERRI AULT noted the Departnment of Corrections fiscal note
is zero.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- March 29, 2005



M5. PARKER acknow edged that was correct and that the departnent
is working with the Division of Elections to determne the
inpact. "It would just depend on the volume and turnover," she
sai d.

CHAI R THERRI AULT asked how long a parole violator mght spend
back in prison and how many tines the door m ght revol ve.

M5. PARKER said it depends. If he/she commts a technical
violation and a new crinme is commtted then he/she is revoked
and would typically go back into the system and serve the
probation/parole tine. The offender may also reapply to get out
on discretionary parole or they serve and get out in another
two-thirds of the sentence.

Oten the offender is re-released, but she didn't have data on
how often that occurs.

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked if she would be contacting other states
that have taken this step to determ ne the fiscal inpact.

M5. PARKER said that would probably be the next step in trying
to determne the fiscal inpact. She noted that Al aska has the
unified system conpared to the county system so conparison is
chal | engi ng.

5:38:42 PM

SENATOR DAVI S asked her to speak to the form that DOC uses for
individuals who will be out on probation. She said her staff was
retrieving a copy.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the recidivismrate is higher or |ower
for felony of noral turpitude than other crines.

MS5. PARKER said she didn't have that information; the offenses
are w de ranging.

CHAI R THERRI AULT said it ranges from nmurder in the first degree
to unl awful furnishing of explosives to m sconduct by a juror

He asked Senator Davis what she had in mnd for a definition for
"incarcerated. "

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- March 29, 2005



SENATOR DAVI S answered as long as they're serving the sentence -
even if it's under house arrest - they would be serving their
term

SENATOR DAVIS asked Ms. Parker to speak to the probationary
form

M5. PARKER responded, "This is a letter that is used in the
Juneau region. They are a little different in each area." The
letter is provided to the offender upon conpletion of the
probation/ parol e advising that the individual's rights are being
restored.

SENATOR DAVIS asked what difference it would nake to use this
| etter under the provisions of SB 26.

M5. PARKER said there wouldn't be any difference. The individual
woul d receive the letter when discharged from prison and going
onto probation/parole. She said her concern relates to the
nunber of revocations.

SENATOR DAVI S asked how they use the letter now.

M5. PARKER answered it's used when the individual is conpletely
of f probation/parole and therefore no | onger under supervision.

CHAIR THERRI AULT asked if it's correct that parole/probation
can't be extended beyond the term of the original sentence.
Unless a new crinme is conmmtted, the individual would get just
one letter. Under SB 26 an individual could receive multiple
letters.

M5 PARKER said that's correct.

SENATOR DAVI S suggested the wheels of progress don't nove that
fast and the person who violates probation/parole within 12

hours probably woul dn't have received the letter yet.
Nonet hel ess, "That's something that could be worked through. |
have no problem with that. That still doesn't say they should

not have that right sinply because we have to cone up with sone
way to make it work."

M5. PARKER responded she is just addressing the fact that once
rel eased, the letter is sent to the Division of Elections. |If
the individual isn't registered to vote and doesn't register
upon release it probably wouldn't create a lot of work for the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 29, 2005



Division of Elections, but DOC would still need to give the
i ndi vidual the letter upon rel ease.

SENATOR DAVI S said that would all be taken into consideration if
the bill were to pass. It's premature for DOC to say how it
woul d work at this point.

MS. PARKER said it could be worked out that a letter wouldn't be
provided at all; she was just explaining what is done currently.

CHAI R THERRI AULT said, "At the very least, Senator Davis, we

need to wrk with the drafters on the definition of the word
"incarcerated. "

SENATOR DAVI S said she had no problemw th that.

CHAI R THERRI AULT announced he was closing the hearing on SSSB
26. The bill was held in commttee.

HIR 8- SUPPORTI NG ALASKA ARMY NATL. GUARD

CHAI R THERRI AULT announced HIR 8 to be up for consideration.
5:46: 38 PM

TERRY  HARVEY, Legislative Ade to Representative Bruce
Weyhrauch, presented HIJIR 8, which recognizes and offers support
to the active nenbers of the Arny National Guard that are
currently deployed worl dwi de. The |anguage in the resolution is
inclusive and it also recognizes nenbers who have returned and
those who are preparing to deploy. He noted that the nunber of
depl oynents is at a record high and nore are pendi ng.

The resolution received unaninous support in the House and he
asked the State Affairs Commttee to extend its support as well.

5:48: 10 PM
LI EUTENANT COLONEL M KE BRI DGES, Al aska National Guard, spoke
via teleconference to say that he provided the background
information for the resolution and he was available for
guesti ons.

5:49:11 PM

SENATOR DAVI S stated this is a good resolution and the commttee
shoul d nove it out.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- March 29, 2005



CHAI R THERRI AULT asked if she would |like to make a noti on.

SENATOR DAVI S notioned to report HIR 8 and attached fiscal zero
note(s) fromconmmttee wi th unani nbus consent.

CHAIR THERRI AULT announced SJR 8 passed from conmttee wth
unani mous support.

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair Therriault adjourned the neeting at 5:49:57 PM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- March 29, 2005



